

# City of Powell, Ohio

Planning & Zoning Commission
Donald Emerick, Chairman
Ed Cooper, Vice Chairman
Trent Hartranft
Joe Jeste

Shawn Boysko

Trent Hartranft Joe Jester Chris Meyers, AIA, Architectural Advisor Bill Little

## MEETING MINUTES July 26, 2017

A meeting of the Powell Planning & Zoning Commission was called to order by Chairman Don Emerick on Wednesday, July 26, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. Commissioners present included Shawn Boysko, Ed Cooper, Trent Hartranft, Joe Jester and Bill Little. Also present were Dave Betz, Development Director; Leilani Napier, Planning & Zoning Clerk and interested parties. Chris Meyers, Architectural Advisor, was absent.

#### STAFF ITEMS

No Staff items.

#### HEARING OF VISITORS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Chairman Emerick opened the public comment session. Hearing none, he closed the public comment session.

#### APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MOTION: Commissioner Cooper moved to approve the minutes of July 12, 2017. Commissioner Jester seconded the motion. By unanimous consent the minutes were approved. Chairman Emerick abstained.

#### COMBINED PRELIMINARY & FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW

Applicant:

Ford & Associates Architects/Dr. Khaksarfard

Location: Existing Zoning: SE corner of West Olentangy Street and Murphy Parkway (DB) Downtown Business District

Request:

To review a proposal to construct a retail center on 1.51 acres.

Rob MacInnes, Ford & Associates, 1500 West First Ave., Columbus, said he is representing the owner. He brought material boards to show materials and a rendering of the building. A lot of the comments at the last meeting were regarding enhancing pedestrian activity at the northwest corner and connecting pedestrian experience from the rear parking area. They addressed these comments in a positive manner. They paid a lot of attention to comments regarding the site plan, the architecture and the landscaping. They modified the northwest corner tower per Mr. Meyers' comments. They carved out a portion to allow pedestrians to walk through. A nice exterior patio space has been created. They created a deeper overhang, added nice up-lighting and changed some materials. They moved the dumpster location from near the transformer to the southwest corner of the parking lot. This created a nicer pedestrian experience while walking around the building but also makes it easier for the truck to pull in and out when picking up trash. They pulled the concrete walk off of the face of the building roughly 5' so they could add a lot of landscaping to soften the edge. They created piers with a light and sign at the corner locations. They added landscaping detail to mask the utilities.

Mr. Betz reviewed the Staff Report (Exhibit 1).

### PROJECT BACKGROUND

The site is located at the southeast corner of Murphy Parkway and Olentangy Street. Best Friends Veterinary is to the east and the Murphy Crossing condos are to the south. This is the last property within the overall Murphy Park development plan approved by the City many years ago. There was always a plan to have a common access drive shared to the south and east of the site. The right-in/right-out on Olentangy Street will stay.

A gentleman from the audience spoke without going to the podium (inaudible). Chairman Emerick advised the gentleman public comments would be allowed after the Staff Report.

#### PROPOSAL OVERVIEW

Mr. Betz said the property will be a mixed-use of retail and service businesses. Restaurants will be restricted due to parking. Parking meets requirements for retail and service businesses but would not meet it for restaurants. There is no parking agreement with the veterinary office to the east. Staff had asked the applicant to have a traffic engineer look at Murphy Parkway. We received a letter (Exhibit 1B) from Todd Stanhope recommending a 50' left turn lane with a 50' taper. There will be underground storage of storm water, under the parking lot. The elevation drawings are very similar to what was shown in the Sketch Plan review. This building will be very similar to the retail buildings across Murphy Parkway. Materials will be a mix of stone, brick and Hardi-Plank siding. Signs with down lighting will identify the stores. Landscaping around the building has been increased. A line of shrubs along the southern end of the property will be put in, creating a buffer for the residential area. Staff has a concern with the access drive and the parking spaces which might allow people to pull right in and right out, while traffic is coming and going. The applicant might want to consider putting a small island in which would force people to drive into the lot to park and would prevent people from leaving their cars hanging out into the access drive.

## STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with the conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Commissioner Hartranft said an outside sitting area is mentioned. Does this need to be added? Mr. Betz said there is a possibility for a shop to want to have outdoor seating. If a coffee shop were to go in they might want outdoor seating. There may be areas along the sidewalk to create these types of seating areas. Staff would need to review these types of requests as they come in. Mr. MacInnes said they looked into this idea at one point, until speaking with Mr. Betz and learning restaurants would be prohibited due to parking. If parking is resolved with the neighbor at a later date, there is plenty of space to revise the landscaping to add exterior seating. Mr. Betz said there may be some alternatives to restaurants which want seating areas. Mr. MacInnes said there is a pretty large space by the north tower with bike racks and enhanced landscaping which could be a gathering space.

Chairman Emerick opened this item to public comment.

Roy Baldwin, 69 Murphy Oval, asked where the dumpster will be located. Mr. Betz showed Mr. Baldwin where the dumpster will be placed, the south side of the parking lot. Mr. Baldwin said this is 60' from his bedroom. Will there be any restrictions for the dumpster? Commissioner Hartranft asked if Mr. Baldwin was asking about the size of the dumpster or when trash can be picked up. Mr. Baldwin said yes, the size, how often it will be emptied. Mr. Betz said there has to be screening around the dumpster and pickup times have to be after 7:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. Commissioner Little asked Mr. Betz to show where the dumpster is for the veterinarian property. Mr. Betz showed the veterinarian's dumpster is also located on the south side of their property. Mr. Baldwin asked if there will be outdoor restaurants which will create noise. Chairman Emerick said there will be no restaurants. Mr. Baldwin asked if there will be restrictions which will prevent restaurants. Mr. Betz and Chairman Emerick said yes. Mr. Betz said a restaurant restriction will be a part of the Development Plan. Mr. Baldwin said another concern is the traffic on Murphy Parkway. When they moved in the parkway wasn't complete. Traffic has gotten very heavy. He is concerned because his bedroom is 60' away from the dumpster. He has an 86 year old wife. They have serious concerns. Chairman Emerick thanked Mr. Baldwin for his comments. Mr. Baldwin said what about the traffic. Will a traffic light go in? Chairman Emerick said no traffic light is planned.

<u>Vince Margello, 3967 Presidential Parkway</u>, said he has built many centers. How many SF is this center? Chairman Emerick said around 13,000 SF. Mr. Betz said 13,800 SF. Mr. Margello said it is a very nice design. Why are restaurants being restricted? Chairman Emerick said it is the applicant's desire. Mr. Margello asked Mr. MacInnes why they are restricting restaurants. Mr. MacInnes said the main reason is because of the parking count. Mr. Margello asked what the parking count is. Mr. MacInnes said they will have 42 parking spaces. We are talking with the veterinarian regarding shared parking but neither owner is interested at this time. Mr. Margello said he was just curious.

Hearing no further public comments, Chairman Emerick closed the public comment session and opened the floor for comments and questions from the Commission.

Commissioner Hartranft thanked the applicant for coming back before P&Z, making the changes, listening to the comments made at the previous meeting and complying with those requests. Mr. Meyers' comments were taken to heart regarding the landscaping and opening up the tower area, making it appealing to pedestrians. He likes the plan and he likes the way the plan has been tied into the sidewalk and walking path on the Murphy Parkway side.

Commissioner Little thanked the developer. Will there be white fencing? Mr. Betz said white fencing is included in the plan. Mr. MacInnes said there is existing fencing along the west side which they will continue along the north

side. It will all match. Commissioner Little said he will include working with the City Engineer to construct an island on the south side of the parking lot as one of the conditions. He looks forward to the final building. It will be a nice bookend to the building across the street.

Commissioner Boysko said he agrees with all comments made. He recalls discussing how they will deal with the dual loaded retail space and how it will be accessed; from the back or front. Mr. MacInnes said he anticipates the majority of the front entrances will be along the parking lot side. They are trying to leave flexibility to allow for secondary means of egress or a larger rear door along the back side. There are concrete walks along the west and north sides which connect to exterior doors. They want to leave some flexibility for the tenants. We are giving the tenants the design criteria and telling them what the exterior elevation needs to be. They need to fit within the store front. They can't modify the materials. Commissioner Boysko asked if the store fronts along Murphy Parkway are opaque or clear glass. Mr. MacInnes said it would depend on the tenants but personally they will try to avoid the spandrel panels as much as possible. They will push the tenant to leave the glass as transparent as possible. They haven't talked to any tenants yet but they believe tenants are going to want their front window as close to the parking spaces as possible. Commissioner Boysko said this was the challenge you face with this type of configuration, a dual loaded retail space. Some of the changes made had the intent to activate the pedestrian side, make it more pedestrian friendly; which is great but without entrances there will be a false store front. He doesn't know how well this side will be used, if any at all. If you build with spandrel glass they will be false store fronts. You will be pushing everyone to enter from the back. Unless you put in clear glass. Mr. MacInnes said he isn't opposed to using clear glass however some tenants will just put film on the glass. City restrictions pertaining to putting up film or signs would help but he isn't aware of any.

Commissioner Jester said he was over on Murphy Parkway watching the traffic and the change of the lines on the street is a good idea. There was a lot of traffic backing up. He knows 315 is making things back up but traffic is very heavy. Should there be a deceleration lane for traffic coming north? He doesn't know how someone turning left leaving the parking lot is going to get out. Today it would have been impossible for someone to turn left out of the lot. Mr. Betz said the current 315 situation has increased the use of other roads in our community. We have seen a 50% increase in traffic since 315 closed. This should go away once 315 opens back up. The long term plan for the City in regards to capital improvements will include looking at how to improve West Olentangy to the west. This would include the Murphy Parkway intersection. Eventually, West Olentangy will need to be widened and possibly put in a double left-hand turn lane at this intersection. This isn't necessary now but may be in the future. Commissioner Jester asked how far out this would be. Mr. Betz said we don't know. It will be based on utilization of Murphy Parkway, how much Powell Road traffic increases and surrounding growth. We will have to monitor the intersection. When the Murphy Park development was done 15 years ago, Murphy Parkway was built with the turn lanes based on the traffic plans then. In the next 10 years we will need to watch and include any improvements as a capital improvements project. This developer isn't responsible for improving the intersection. We are trying to accommodate moving people in and out of the parking lot now. Commissioner Jester said we are responsible for looking at what a development will do in regards to traffic. What about a deceleration lane? Mr. Betz said a deceleration lane is not warranted with the current traffic. Commissioner Jester asked how he knows this. Mr. Betz said it is his best guess right now, as a practicing planner for 30 years. We can take a look at this but it isn't something which has come up on our radar or the traffic engineer's radar. Commissioner Jester said he wants it on record he has asked the question and it is on the City's radar. Chairman Emerick said the speed limit on Murphy Parkway is 25 MPH. Mr. Betz said it is not anticipated there is going to be a problem. Commissioner Jester said his thoughts are based on what he saw today.

Commissioner Cooper thanked the applicant for coming back. He likes the design. We need to list restaurant use is not allowed in the conditions. We need to include the street striping and the additional parking lot island in the conditions.

Chairman Emerick thanked the applicant for incorporating the comments from Mr. Meyers and the Commission. This is a good looking project.

Commissioner Cooper said he understands what Commissioner Boysko was saying about clear windows on the west side of the building. During this time of year, the sun will be brutal on the west side of the building. This is something to keep in mind.

Mr. Baldwin spoke from the audience saying he has been waiting for the environmental impact statement for this project and he hasn't seen it. Chairman Emerick said this would have been a part of the Staff Report which was covered earlier. Mr. Betz said when the overall zoning was done of the entire Murphy Park 100 acres, the City looked at the environmental issues. Each development is done in phases. Murphy Park was done in 4 phases of the residential. Each development is reviewed. Commercial was a part of the plan to begin with. He isn't sure

what Mr. Baldwin is looking for exactly, in terms of an environmental impact statement. The City doesn't require an environmental impact statement for any individual lot development like this one. We look at the soil to make sure it is stable enough to hold the building. In terms of the general impact of the development on Powell, this was studied when the original 100 acre zoning was established. This project has certain requirements in regards to the buildings, landscaping, trash removal, lighting requirements; all of which the developer is meeting. The developer is doing everything Code requires them to do. The Commission adds conditions to make sure the development is the best it possibly can be. Mr. Baldwin spoke from the audience (inaudible). Mr. Betz said no, there is no specific environmental impact statement. One isn't required. Storm water has been reviewed to make sure there will be no flooding. Mr. Baldwin spoke from the audience (inaudible). Mr. Betz said there will be a wall of plants.

Josh McKeever, Faris Planning & Design, said there will be numerous plants, over 40 plants, which will be put in along the southern edge of the property line. The plants will be 4' tall when planted. The plants will grow at a quick pace. It won't be long before there will be a very nice plant screen. Mr. Baldwin spoke from the audience (inaudible). Mr. Betz said there is no room for mounding. There is existing mounding on the condo property which serves as a buffer. Chairman Emerick said if Mr. Baldwin has any other additional questions someone would be happy to meet with him after the meeting.

MOTION: Commissioner Little moved to approve a combined Preliminary & Final Development Plan for a proposal to construct a retail center on 1.51 acres, for the property located at the SE corner of West Olentangy Street and Murphy Parkway as represented by Ford & Associates Architects/Dr. Khaksarfard, subject to the following condition(s):

- 1. That the City Engineer shall review and approve all final engineering plans, and
- 2. That all engineering related items and easements shall be implemented as required by the City Engineer, and
- 3. That restaurant tenants and/or other uses with high demand parking shall be prohibited unless the applicant is able to produce a shared parking agreement with the property to the east or another nearby location. Any change to the approved Development Plan shall be reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission at a future meeting if a restaurant and/or other uses with high demand parking are proposed, and
- 4. That City Staff shall review and approve any request(s) for outdoor sitting areas by individual tenants or the owner, and
- 5. That all site lighting shall be down style lighting with the exception of landscaping lighting or building lighting which adds visual interest to the site, and
- 6. That the applicant shall work with the City Engineer to construct an additional parking lot island at the first row of parking, on the south side of the parking lot, to eliminate immediate pulling in/pulling out of vehicle parking upon initial entry into the lot, and
- 7. That Murphy Parkway shall be re-striped south of Olentangy Street, to allow a left-hand turn to enter the property when traveling southbound on Murphy Parkway, and
- 8. That the developer shall, in good faith, provide periodic construction updates to the Murphy Crossing Condo Association which surrounds the property.

Commissioner Cooper seconded the motion.

VOTE: Y <u>6</u> N <u>0</u>

## **CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS**

Applicant: Matthew Althouse Location: 26 W. Olentangy Street

Zoning: (DB) Downtown Business District

Request: To review a proposal to renovate an existing building for the purposes of a restaurant, and

approve a parking plan for the proposal, as allowed by Section 1143.16 (g) (7) of the Powell

Zoning Code.

Matthew Althouse, Architect, 1165 Elm Park Circle, Galloway, said they have brought revised elevations, a shared parking agreement and parking lot signage. Architecturally, they took Mr. Meyers' comments into consideration. They added brackets onto the main entrance feature which protrudes 16", with a metal roof. Mr. Betz said there used to be 2 posts and a little overhang. They removed the posts because it was protruding into the right-of-way. Mr. Althouse said there will be an applied element which will create a sense of home with a porch, embracing the front entrance aspect. The door is within the building, recessed into the building. People will go up 2 steps off of the sidewalk into/under the feature. Commissioner Jester asked what he will do for handicap people. Mr. Althouse said there is handicap parking in the rear, with a ramp up to the back door. Commissioner Jester said he would expect him to put a sign up showing where handicap parking is. Mr. Althouse said they will. Code says they have to identify where handicap parking is. They are up to 15 parking spaces with the new parking plan. The dumpster is along the alley, pushed forward so they could fit in another parking space. The sample sign is a graphic

representation of the downtown area so people can get a feel for where they are and where parking is. Streets are labeled.

Mr. Betz reviewed the Staff Report (Exhibit 1).

The applicant has provided a signed easement with the neighbor next door to build the proposed parking lot, providing for 16 spaces, including the handicap space. This does meet Code requirements because in the Downtown Business District we divide by 2. There is a garage which could provide 2 extra parking spaces not included in the count. The garage is being used for storage right now but could be cleaned out and used in the future for employees or owners. Staff has provided photos from the municipal parking lot (Exhibit 1C), using security cameras. They have data over various days, over a 2 week period. The video shows how the parking lot is used at various times. The photos show a Monday morning when a special kid event was taking place; 88 of the 112 parking spaces were being used. The Downtown Parking Census, which comes out of the Code Update Committee, looks at whether parking requirements are OK or if there should be any changes. A parking census is a review of the City, going out at various times of the day, on various days of the week, during various weeks of the year, to count cars in parking lots/spaces. Staff has physically counted cars. Today was the last day of taking counts. They have started putting together a data table. They have created a few maps showing the data. They have many more to create. The maps show parking lots downtown. The different colors represent the percentage of use the particular parking lots experience. Blue is 0 – 50% utilization, green is 50% - 75%, yellow is 75% - 90% and red is 90% - 100%. You can see patterns as they evolved at various times of the day, various days of the week and weeks of the year. They started this project in late April or early May. Mr. Betz showed May 20th and the various changes throughout the day. The on-street parking spaces are pretty much used all day on Olentangy Street. Mr. Betz showed other days. Commission Hartranft asked if a specific day shown was a special event. Mr. Betz said it could have been a Parks & Rec event. He can find out. The data shows the various parking levels. The municipal lot is mostly in the 50% - 75% utilization rate. At the last meeting it was mentioned the municipal lot was full as people were coming in to the P&Z meeting. This was the case that night, the west part of the lot was only half full and no alley spaces were being used. We found out there was a private party in the solar shelter which had several dozen adults and kids attending. This was an anomaly but certainly we expect the municipal lot to be used. Staff's review of the data and having a general knowledge of the municipal parking lot, shows the municipal lot is under-utilized; especially the west portion of the lot. There are opportunities for additional parking which have been identified in the Keep Powell Moving plan, if roadways are adjusted and alleys are connected. Staff feels parking is adequate now that Mr. Sun has provided an approval from his neighbor to build a parking lot and with using the municipal lot for his employees. The City's Code is the way it is because of the smaller lots. The Parking Census will be finalized and presented to the Code Update Committee.

Chairman Emerick opened this item to public comment.

Vince Margello, 1900 West Powell Road, said he is the owner of the property where Local Roots is located. He is going to repeat some of the stuff he said last time because Commissioner Boysko wasn't here. He purchased about ½ million dollars' worth of land in 1980 to provide parking for a restaurant he built. It was called Saturday's Sports Club. He invested over a million dollars in it. He had to so he could provide parking for the restaurant. They have about 125 parking spaces. His lot is totally full tonight. Probably 20 of those cars don't belong in his lot. He pays real estate taxes on this lot. This month he wrote a check for over a 1/4 million dollars for real estate taxes on properties he owns. He should be allowed to have a private parking lot and be able to take care of it. He noticed Mr. Betz pointing out a bunch of parking lots he says are under-utilized. These lots are private parking lots owned by land owners who own the lots. We have the maintenance on these lots, we have the cleanup, and we have the striping, the sealing, the real estate taxes and the liability on our lots. A woman called him one day saying her child fell in his parking lot. She was going to sue him. He asked her if she went inside and told the manager. She said no because they went to Jeni's Ice Cream. He told her he would have no more conversation with her. She was illegally parked in his parking lot. P&Z has 2 other agreements which have been broken; Easy Street, now Kraft House. They were to provide off-location parking in the salon parking lot for the seating in their restaurant. He brought pictures to the last meeting showing a sign saying "salon parking only". Then there is Jeni's. Under their agreement they were supposed to have 12 reserved parking spaces down where the old fire station is. It is a hub for new businesses now. If you go down there during the day, those parking spaces are completely full during the day. Jeni's basically has 2 parking spaces. He can sit there with a camera any day of the week and watch Jeni's customers park in his lot, walk across the street and sit over at Jeni's and have ice cream. They walk back over to his lot. Every time they have a car in their lot which doesn't go into Local Roots, we lose \$60 - \$100. He is here tonight because he will not subsidize anymore restaurants being built or high density businesses downtown using his parking lot. Nobody looks into these agreements made. If we put an illegal sign out, the Zoning Inspector is there telling us to remove the sign. Nobody looks into the parking agreements which are broken by these 2 businesses. You have a proposal before you tonight with an agreement of easement for shared parking. Great

how Mr. Betz explains it. But, he left out some important issues. Mr. Betz said there will be 16 parking spaces. He asked Mr. Betz to count the spaces. They scratched their heads today trying to figure out where 16 parking spaces come from. Mr. Margello asked if a real narrow Fiat would be parked in the real narrow parking spaces shown. Mr. Betz said the spaces are 9' by 19' spaces and they meet Code. Mr. Betz counted 16 spaces and said there are 2 potential spaces in the garage. The required spaces per Code is 16 spaces. Mr. Sun has said he will have his employees park in the municipal lot. There are other property owners in the area, such as Prohibition, which do the same. Prohibition employees do park in the municipal lot, as opposed to employees at other restaurants who park in the on-street parking spaces all day so the retailers have problems with parking for their customers. Staff feels this is a good plan to get in as many parking spaces as possible in the back. Staff is making this recommendation to the Commission. Commissioner Jester asked what the ratio is for handicap parking. Mr. Betz said there needs to be 1 handicap space for 25 spaces. It becomes more as the lot gets bigger. Mr. Margello said he can't believe 2 of the proposed spaces will fit cars. Can you imagine a parking space in front of a dumpster? That is what this plan is showing. A parking space in front of a dumpster. They are also showing 2 different parcels, with 1 handicap parking space. Let's get down to the nitty gritty. They left out the most important part. The agreement says during the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., the 4 parking spaces in the southwest portion of the west parking lot shall be reserved for Powell Property Partners, LTD (PPP), or the other lot, and for occupants and visitors for 30 West Olentangy Street. In other words, 4 parking spaces can't be utilized by the restaurant during 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. Lunch is between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. Dinner is between 5:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. There is no augrantee those 4 parking spaces will empty out at 7:00 p.m. Those 4 spaces are null and void. The agreement also says the handicap space can be utilized by PPP if it is empty. The restaurant then won't have a handicap space. This is a cloak being pulled over everybody to get more parking spaces which don't exist. PPP has to have parking spaces so they have reserved the spaces so the restaurant can't utilize them between 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. He stressed the prime meal business times. The agreement can also be terminated at any time. The agreement doesn't have to come back before P&Z. The agreement can be terminated by the landowners. The person who signed the agreement isn't the owner. He has a land contract. It is Larry Coolidae's land and whoever he is in with. Larry is granting parking spaces and he can terminate at any time. Mr. Margello said he has 2 handicap parking spaces for Local Roots. What if he went down the street and told another business they could use those handicap spaces, you don't need to have any in your lot. Somehow this has got to be against Code. Mr. Betz said the ADA requirements and Building Codes allow for a handicap space at a building next door if the overall parking size meets ADA parking. Mr. Margello said P&Z has to see they don't have 4 parking spaces between the hours listed. This is prime restaurant business time. This is when a restaurant makes money. You heard me ask the gentleman from the previous request why they aren't putting in any restaurants. His answer was because they don't have adequate parking. He has 40 some spaces. Eliminating 4 spaces plus the handicap space takes 16 spaces down to 11 spaces for a 40 seat restaurant. All you are doing is cannibalizing his parking lot and he isn't going to put up with it anymore. He is tired of subsidizing other businesses. He had a person spend 7 hours cleaning up his lot this week. Kraft House hasn't had their lot paved in years. There needs to be some type of standards. Agreements made should be kept. Business owners should take responsibility for their own parking and not put the burden on any other owner. Commissioner Jester asked Mr. Margello what his solution was, you gave us the problem, what is the solution. Mr. Margello said his solution is to do what he did, buy some property and put a parking lot in. You can't keep putting 25 pounds of crap in a 2 pound bag. It doesn't work. Did you read the article about the Short North? They have no parking. The Commission is creating the same situation in downtown Powell. You gre crucifying businesses who put millions of dollars into their property and try to do something right downtown. You are letting people come in on the cheap side and finagle their way in, knowing they are going to park in other business's parking lots. It isn't right. Commissioner Jester asked what the solution is. Mr. Margello said when a request for a restaurant comes before the Commission, they have to provide parking for their facility. He did. Prohibition is the best situation he has seen. They put in a drive and their people park in the municipal lot. They don't park in his lot. The Commission is making him the bad guy telling him he has to tow. It makes him look like the walking devil. You wouldn't like it if people parked in your driveway. You are putting me in a bad position. You are putting Jessi, who has put a lot of hours into the restaurant to make it successful, in a bad position. It isn't right.

<u>Bill Waddell, 4951 Scioto,</u> said he has been a member of the community for 30 plus years. He has watched the community grow. He told Larry Coolidge and Jon Bennehoof he has pictures of his newspaper being delivered by horseback at his house on Jewett Road. Mr. Waddell asked Mr. Betz to show his property on the screen. He has a sense of community. He thought he saw a lot of empty parking spaces in Mr. Betz's illustration. Something needs to be worked out. Some signage put up showing where parking is. The community needs to know where parking is and they don't need to park in Mr. Margello's lot. It is very convenient and he knows it happens because his daughter is the hostess at Local Roots. He hasn't talked with his wife but he wants to throw out a proposal. People could park on his lot. Some gravel could be put down and people could park there. Commissioner Little said he was going to recommend this. Mr. Waddell said people fill his lot during Powell Festival. Larry Coolidge told him the City would pay me to let people park in his lot but he said no, let them park there. He pays to have the lot cut.

They have never had an issue. He understands now, after talking to Jon Bennehoof, there is a liability issue. He heard Mr. Margello speak of the liability issue. He knows it is real. He has a dental business in Liberty Crossing and he has invested about 2.5 million into this area. He has liability. There are easily 10 spaces on his lot. He doesn't have any immediate plans for the property. He is open to help the community grow. If Mr. Sun wants to lay some gravel down and bail him out on liability in some way, protect him in that area, it is a walk away. Mr. Betz said the width of the lot is 100'. You could easily put 10 spaces in off the alley. Mr. Waddell said he had 60 cars in the lot during Powell Festival. We will have to talk about this. He may plan to build on the lot but not in the immediate future, 2 years. This would give the City time to get some signage up. There is under-utilized parking. We need to get people out of Mr. Margello's lot. If you are travelling north on Liberty, you can't make a left-hand turn on Olentangy. People could go up a little further north on Liberty and turn left onto the road his property is on. Chairman Emerick recommended Mr. Waddell talk with Mr. Betz and the applicant. Mr. Waddell said one of his original ideas for his property was to put a community garden on it. He has talked with restaurant chefs about growing vegetables and herbs in a community garden. This would really make it Local Roots. He was told there were zoning issues with this idea. He was planning on donating the property to have it in the community. Depending on how talks go with his wife, but as he downsizes over the next 2 years, this property is open.

Mr. Margello said here we are, back to these agreements. What happens in 2 years or even a year, when Mr. Waddell decides to do something? Or what happens if Mr. Waddell is no longer around and his wife decides to sell the property? I want an ironclad agreement in place. Commissioner Boysko said to Mr. Margello's point, aren't these easements deeded with the property? Mr. Betz said yes, it would be a recorded easement. Commissioner Boysko said the easement is tied to the property. Mr. Margello said if you look at the agreement, the agreement can be cancelled at any time. Mr. Betz said there is a way to work this out.

Larry Coolidge, 78 West Olentangy Street, said it was mentioned earlier that he owns a building. He doesn't own a building. It was sold on a land contract. Mr. Sun was going to refinance and buy him out once the building got to where he wanted it to be. Mr. Sun has the rights to the property right now, legally. This building is one of the original buildings in Powell. It used to be a general store with an ice cream store in it. He purchased the property with his partner Steve Martin. They never had a vacancy. As trends changed, it was once the highest volume antique store in Powell. There is a lot of viewing from the window frontage. The building went vacant about a year ago. He had several people interested in the building. One was a gourmet popcorn store. Due to an untimely death of one of their key members, they backed out. There was someone interested in putting in a dress store. He doesn't think a dress store would add to downtown Powell. He met Mr. Sun and Mr. Sun told him his plans and he thought it would work. The building is old. He never had the chance to renovate. Mr. Sun's plans are beautiful. The building is in a TIF District. Mr. Sun did an excellent job on Espresso 22. He has turned the business around and he knows what he is doing. His family has owned Asian restaurants in Akron. This is an opportunity to rehab this building and change the use. We met tonight with the business association, Jon Bennehoof and Mayor Lorenz. We talked about parking in Powell. There is enough room on the north side of Olentangy Street to put 45 parking spaces behind the church, Kevin Knight's property, my property, the new frame company going in and behind Dan McClure's property. If this could be coordinated there would be 45 more parking spaces. Dr. Waddell has been very nice over the years to let us use his property for events. We can put 45 cars on his lot. But if we just had 10 spaces along the alley it would work. If you look at the parking ratios in Powell, there is only one building which has the right amount of parking spaces. 21, 23 and 35 West Olentangy Street, where Prohibition is, has 6,600 SF of buildings with 12 parking spaces. This is 1 parking space for each 550 SF. Mr. Sun has 1,800 SF, 1 parking space for 200 SF. This doesn't include the property next door. 8 North Liberty Street, Jeni's, has over 5,000 SF, 1 parking space for each 1,250 SF. 50 South Liberty Street has over 35,000 SF, with 84 parking spaces or 1 space for 416 SF. This request more than meets what the other restaurants have. Easy Street made an agreement with the spa tenant for parking. Someone went to the land owner and told them this. The land owner went to his tenant and told him to not let anyone park in the lot. The new people who bought the carryout want to welcome the community and they aren't going to close off their parking lot. The carryout is right behind Mr. Sun's restaurant. This is an opportunity to rehab the building and increase taxes. This restaurant, an Asian fusion, won't go against any other restaurant in town. He thinks it should be welcomed in the community and we should be happy it is here.

<u>Dustin Sun, 9619 Shawnee Trail, Shawnee Hills,</u> thanked everyone who spoke before him. The City of Powell is a city he has always wanted to be involved in. They had their son in Powell, 13 years ago. They went to Akron to help his family business out. They have 3 restaurants in Akron. The oldest has been in Akron for over 40 years. He grew up in the restaurant business. He knows how hard it is. He appreciates Jessi because he knows it is a tough business. He thinks this is a good building to invest in. He will probably be putting a ¼ million into this project. He has been working with everyone on this project. He thanked Mr. Betz for the parking data. He wishes this would be the last meeting. He will continue to work with the area business owners. He would love to talk with Mr. Waddell and put gravel down for 10 spaces. Once down, it would be very hard to remove those 10 parking spaces. The spaces would be available for the residents of Powell.

Mr. Margello said he gave the Commission 2 examples of businesses who have broken their parking agreements. Nothing is being done about it and he is suffering because of it. He is asking the Commission to make sure any agreement is in concrete writing that there is proper parking, if the Commission is going to approve this request. Don't let them come in here and fool you by not reading the hours of use limitations. They are trying to fool the Commission. If Dr. Waddell is going to give parking, it needs to be available as long as the restaurant is in business. Otherwise, there will be another broken agreement just like Kraft House and Jeni's. He will suffer again. He is asking the Commission to be fair and understand he is trying to run a business and the Commission is basically cannibalizing his parking spaces.

Hearing no further public comments, Chairman Emerick closed the public comment session and opened the floor for comments and questions from the Commission.

Commissioner Cooper said the problem with this request is the parking. He said this 2 weeks ago. He would love to see this building rehabbed. He would love to see the restaurant go in. He still thinks there is a problem with the parking. The agreement can be cancelled at any time. The lack of use of the 4 to 5 spaces during the hours of 10 to 7, which is prime time. Dr. Waddell's offer is great but he would have to agree with Mr. Margello, it needs to be permanent. Dr. Waddell doesn't know what his wife is going to say yet. The City should investigate this further. As it is right now, he couldn't approve the request this evening. He would be willing to table the request again. See if more details can be worked out.

Commissioner Jester said he is listening to Mr. Margello in regards to the agreement. If we approve this based on the agreement, the agreement should be reviewed by the City Law Director. There was a lot of new information tonight. He thinks the new information is very interesting and he wishes he would have known before tonight. He went to this property today and parked behind the building. He would like to see the restaurant go in. He has some problems with the parking. New information has been presented tonight and he is wondering where in the world these people have been all along. The Commission is making a major decision. This is a turning point. Mr. Margello, you are making your point very well. This is important and sometimes we need to say enough is enough. Solutions have been presented. We need to see these other new solutions worked out. He would like to hear a legal evaluation. He wants the City Attorney to get involved before he does anything. As he sat in the parking lot, he realized this business is going to change the whole dynamics of the alley area. Lighting is going to be an issue. There are a lot of unanswered questions. This business is very important to Powell. The issues need to be settled. He is trying to be as fair as he can be. Commissioner Jester asked Mr. Betz if he had something he wanted to say. Mr. Betz said this request is very important to the City of Powell. This is why Staff is in full agreement with Mr. Sun's request and what he is trying to do with this property. Without approving the restaurant, the City is going to continue to see the current building. The City will continue to see the current building no matter what kind of parking is put in. The building is not a viable retail store, when financing \$250,000 to \$300,000 to renovate. A restaurant can make the transition a lot easier from a financial standpoint; especially if the restaurant is successful. A retailer who is not a national retailer or someone who ends up leasing to some trinket shop is not going to make this type of renovation happen. The building, in the condition it is in, is going to keep being the way it is with a coat of paint on it. This is why Staff feels this request is very important, with the parking agreement presented, which meets Code requirements. The combined parking does meet Code. Staff is asking for approval on the combined parking option. The Commission has the authority, Staff doesn't, to approve this under the Code. That is why the request is before you tonight; to approve the architecture and the parking plan presented; including the shared parking easement and having employees park in the municipal lot. We know the restaurant is going to provide a greater impact. Even Local Roots employees park in the public parking spaces along the street when they should be parking in the bigger parking lot so other businesses have the opportunity to use the on-street parking. Mr. Margello said the spaces are public spaces. Mr. Betz said he understands that. From an economic standpoint, Staff feels this request is very important, no matter what kind of agreement is put together. Commissioner Jester said he thinks the request is very important. You haven't heard me saying anything against the business and the development of the building. He likes it and it is important for Powell. There also needs to be better signage than what we have today. Most people won't be able to find their way to the back of this building. He is excited about what Mr. Coolidge and Mr. Waddell said. He doesn't want to be dramatic about it but there is work which needs to be done yet. Mr. Coolidge said what has happened tonight is good and it will lead to good things. Solutions have been opened up and there are things which need to be done. He doesn't think people going to Mr. Sun's restaurant will walk all the way from Mr. Margello's parking lot. There are anti-growth people in Powell. Commissioner Jester said one of the things he heard tonight and some of the things he shouldn't have heard tonight is that you met with the Mayor and Vice Mayor. Mr. Coolidge said yes. Commissioner Jester said you guys may be working on something which can solve the problem. We don't know. Mr. Coolidge said this will probably expedite things. Commissioner Jester said how can he know what he is voting on if I don't know what you guys are working out? Mr. Coolidge said he will make sure he gets on things first thing in the morning. Commissioner Jester said he hopes everyone realizes he is trying to be fair about everything. He likes what was said. Mr. Betz said in the meeting they were talking about future improvements. Some improvements can be made in a very short term period and some will take longer. The request you are looking at tonight is a proposal submitted for review by the Commission. The things the meeting met about are about things the City will work towards in the future. Commissioner Jester said he wishes all of the information could have come before the Commission before tonight. He feels there is some stuff going on which should have been on the table. Mr. Betz there are other things going on like our Comprehensive Plan and our Keep Powell Moving plan for future improvements which will benefit the City. Commissioner Jester said he doesn't want to lose this business but he can't say yes tonight with what is going on right now. He is sorry.

Commissioner Boysko said he agrees with everything Commissioner Jester said. He feels the passion. Commissioner Boysko apologized for missing the last meeting but he needs to back up. The parking calculations show 16 parking spaces plus the 2 spaces in the garage. The parking ratios; 25 for the restaurant, 5 for the office, 2 for retail; are for the restaurant and the adjacent retail space. Mr. Betz said yes, for both buildings. Commissioner Boysko said both parcels require 16 spaces total. Mr. Betz said yes. Parking requirements for the Downtown Business District allows for the division by 2. The reason is due to the smaller lots, smaller types of uses and the availability of the municipal lot. There are 112 spaces in the municipal lot available for use. People use about ½ to 3/4 of the 112 spaces. There are plenty of spaces for businesses who can't meet their parking requirements to use. This request is meeting the minimum requirement. We would love to see more for the business but this property can't put in anymore spaces. The parking analysis shows the City doesn't have a parking problem. Commissioner Boysko said to Mr. Margello's point, if both parcels are required to have 16 spaces in total and the agreement eliminates 4 of those spaces, by his calculations the restaurant is only lacking .5 spaces. Mr. Betz said exactly; this is the point he was trying to make. There is a lacking for the restaurant itself however they are investing in the whole parking lot to be utilized. The 4 spaces are being reserved for the other business, of course. Why wouldn't they? The improvement is being made to both properties, which is a betterment to the area. There will be more spaces than what is there now. Commissioner Boysko said he agrees. The Commission isn't in a position to refute those parking requirements/ratios. We have to follow the requirements. We have to make decisions which may not be popular. Mr. Betz said correct. The Code allows the Commission, in the Downtown Business District, to make adjustments to the parking requirements. Plans have been brought before the Commission before such as Prohibition, with other parking plans and testimony tonight has said it works. Commissioner Boysko said he agrees. Mr. Betz said this will work too. Commissioner Boysko said based on this agreement, with the exception of the language or enforceability of the agreement, he agrees with Mr. Margello there may be flaws in the language which should be more restrictive or tied to the parcel and more permanent, which can't be negated. He isn't an attorney. If the agreement was more restrictive, tied more to the property and the only way it could be changed would be to sell the property might be a better way to maintain the parking. Mr. Betz said or a condition could say if the parking goes away they need to find another place for additional parking. Conditions can be added. It isn't a smoke and mirrors type of thing; it is a reality. You are either going to get a use which can afford to pay for this type of improvement or you are going to get a use which can't. Commissioner Boysko said this is a great catalyst to push us towards this direction so we can start making improvements to the alleyway. Maybe this is the project which will do this. The study done goes a long way to identify the utilization of parking lots but the one piece missing, which he would like to see, is to show all of the downtown businesses, what their parking requirements are and compare their requirements to what is actually provided; similar to what Mr. Coolidge was giving. Mr. Betz said we did this a couple years ago, based on square footage and use. He doesn't have the study with him tonight but he can provide the information. Commissioner Boysko said this is a piece of information he is missing and would like to see. The municipal lot is being used to justify the reduced parking the City has so he would like to see this further information. Mr. Betz said exactly, the lot is there for this purpose. We have seen and shown there is plenty of room for more parking. Commissioner Boysko said he thinks everyone is in agreement the development is great and a beautiful addition to the community but the challenge is the parking. In his opinion it comes down to whether we are willing to approve a development which will have a bigger benefit for the community but have a negative impact on the surrounding businesses such as Mr. Margello's business and others. This is what he is struggling with. If he has to evaluate the request just on the zoning requirements, the spaces are negligent .5 spaces. In his mind this is negligible. Mr. Althouse said when they originally came before the Commission, 3 or 4 months ago, we only had parking on our parcel alone and we were ½ a space short. We fell short immediately and couldn't get a variance from the Commission. We have added 6 or 7 spaces to what was originally proposed. We are maxing out the lot. Commissioner Boysko said for the ½ space you are short, you are essentially utilizing the municipal lot to make up for the shortage. Mr. Althouse said 25 spaces is the minimum for restaurant use. Commissioner Boysko said 12-1/2 spaces. Mr. Althouse said 25 spaces is for the normal calculation or 1 space of every 3 seats. A 25 space minimum works for 75 seats. We started with 60 seats and we reduced to 40 seats. If you use the 40 seat count, we are required to have 8-1/2 spaces; if you use pure seat count. They have reduced the seat count and increased their parking in hopes we have met what the Commission has asked for. The proposed sign was glanced over. Other lots could be included on the sign to direct people to other lots. Several people have testified signage is lacking. Every lot could have some type of wayfinding sign. It would get a little more complex to identify private lots where people shouldn't park. Downtown owners could get together and help show where parking is available. It is unfortunate for Mr. Sun that this project is being the catalyst to promote all of this but it will be great for Powell. Commissioner Boysko said based on following the guidelines he would be hard pressed to say the applicant doesn't comply. He fully understands and appreciates the position Mr. Margello is in but if the applicant is following and meeting the guidelines he would have a hard time not approving the request.

Commissioner Little said he has been here for 31 years and when he signed up to be on the Commission he said he would have an equal obligation to both the new residents and the current residents. He thinks he is in the middle of this right now. Mr. Margello has been here longer than most of us, if not all of us. Powell wouldn't be what it is if Mr. Margello hadn't put the blood, sweat and tears into working on things. If Jessi hadn't worked so hard and had such a successful restaurant he doubts we would have all these other restaurants wanting to be in downtown Powell. This request is an opportunity for the City to try and address an issue. If only one building could be refurbished in downtown Powell, this would be the building. To him, when he reviews this kind of request, he tries to make it a process. If we look at the process we have been through, initially when the applicant came in we said you need to work on parking, you have to have a shared parking agreement. Then, at the last meeting, they came in and didn't have an agreement. In good faith they reduced seating from 60 to 40, but still no parking. We have a Historical District requirement which says we will divide parking by 2 and it will be OK. He understands the logic behind the requirement. We don't want to tear down a bunch of buildings so we have a bunch of parking. He understands Commissioner Boysko's point about the applicant meeting our criteria, where we are at, and the applicant is close. Then there is the practical side where we are talking about a high intense use type of business and they have 12 parking spaces, and we can say they really need 25 to be functional and janore this. He doesn't think we should do this. Now the applicant shows up today and has a shared parking agreement with between 12-1/2 and 18 parking spaces. We are making progress. Commissioner Little asked Mr. Betz if he could show census data for the 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. period everyone is worried about. Mr. Betz said they are mapping the chart data. Commissioner Little said he is mostly interested in the municipal lot where the cameras captured parking. Can you roll it to show 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. parking? Mr. Betz said yes. Commissioner Little said pick some days, a Friday, a Saturday and see. Mr. Betz showed the municipal lot during those hours on different days. There is less use during weekends since City employees are not parking. Commissioner Little said during these hours we gre trying to find 12-1/2 parking spaces. The data has been gathered it just hasn't been pulled together to see what the data tells us. Data is data and data can lie. We have data and maybe the data needs to be summarized so we can really understand what is going on. In addition to needing to summarize data, we have the lots Dr. Waddell has offered. This is a positive direction. I think we are real close but we have some apprehension. If we can see the data, maybe the applicant can help the City gather and parse the data to help tell the story. Then maybe we can come back to another meeting and see what the data is actually telling us. Maybe Mr. Coolidge can work with the business owners to agree to work things out. If I'm a business owner uptown, I want people to come uptown, park, walk around, walk into my business, and walk into my neighbor's business. I don't want them to have to get back into their car to drive to another lot. He understands Mr. Margello needing to protect his lot because they have the best parking in town, a well-run business and a lot of patrons. Tabling the request might be the thing to do. I know the applicant is getting antsy but if we can get the data and arrive at a data-driven conclusion. Or, I don't know if we can move forward with the building improvements only and table the parking portion. Mr. Althouse said they are here today because they are changing the use from retail to restaurant which changes the parking requirements. By approving the building only, the return on the investment is risky. Mr. Sun would have to decide if he is willing to pursue this. Commissioner Little said his take is they are not going to approve the request or we are real close to approving. The entire request can be tabled and you can come right back after the data is gathered. Or, we can vote and see what happens. We are close but we need to honor current residents as well as those who want to become members of the community. Mr. Betz asked what it is in regards to data Commissioner Little would like to see. You have already seen snapshots and different times. Commissioner Little said the obvious solution is the municipal lot. He agrees with the comment made that people aren't going to want to park down in Local Roots' lot and walk to this restaurant. The first place people will try to park is the municipal lot. He knows from being in the lot several times over the last couple weeks he sees 25 - 30 open spaces on a regular basis. If the data can be put in a presentable form which everyone can look at and understand, we may be able to see this. Mr. Betz said so you want specific numbers at various times, days, weeks? Chairman Emerick said he thinks Mr. Kambo, after their Code Diagnostics meeting last night, was going to look at the data and analyze the total restaurant demand versus the municipal lot utilization and make sure we weren't over-selling the municipal lot as a solution. This might be helpful. Commissioner Little thinks the data is starting to tell the municipal lot can bear some of the load, but the data hasn't been summarized. Mr. Betz said yes, the municipal lot can bear about 50% more load, most of the times. Mr. Coolidge asked if this would be during the 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. period. Mr. Betz said yes. Commissioner Boysko said this is what we are looking to quantify. It isn't just this request. Other developments coming will be affected. Mr. Betz said you need the overall picture, he understands. Commissioner

Boysko said at what point are we going to overburden the municipal lot? Is it this request or is it 5 more? We need to quantify. Jessi lams spoke from the audience (inaudible). Chairman Emerick asked her to come to the podium.

<u>Jessi lams, 15 East Olentangy Street,</u> said Mr. Betz just made a snappy comment saying her employees are parking at 44 or on-street parking. Their requirement is public parking. She tells them to be kind and not park in on-street parking but she can't control them. It is public parking. If I told them they couldn't park at 44, which is what Mr. Betz wants her to do, or not in on-street parking and only at the municipal lot, it would be 25 more spots her employees would be taking from the municipal lot. Behind 44 in the gravel parking lot is what she finds to be fair but she is getting told this isn't a good option.

Commissioner Little said in his opinion we should look at the burden in the municipal lot. The camera catches along the railroad tracks which is a quasi, unofficial parking lot. Commissioner Boysko asked if he meant Depot Street. Commissioner Little said yes. Mr. Betz said Depot Street is another lot which is utilized for public parking. Commissioner Little said it would help if a lot of businesses put up directional signs for parking. He has walked around German Village and Italian Village and they have worse parking problems than Powell. They seem to manage their parking. If we want a vibrant community we need to find a way to address the situation. A proactive City Council would have bought the 2 lots behind the carryout and we would have had parking. Maybe Mr. Waddell would like to make some profit and the City can have a parking lot. We are making progress. He would hate to see Mr. Sun walk away. He thinks we can get there but we need to satisfy everyone's emotions on this. It frustrates him and he has always wondered why the downtown business owners don't want to make it a priority to figure out how to address this issue. Maybe they now feel the need to do this. It would be beneficial.

Commissioner Hartranft thanked everyone for their input. The more input the Commission receives the more we can evaluate things and change things in the future. He isn't going to take any more time. What has been said has been said. Parking has always been an issue in Powell. This restaurant isn't going to overburden the current status of our parking. The applicant has come back with reduced seating and a parking agreement. I think he is within our requirements and our job as a Commission is to look at the requirements and see if they are being applied in a reasonable manner, interpret the requirements and make a decision. While a lot of the Commission members don't feel the same, he would be satisfied if we would approve the Certificate of Appropriateness.

Chairman Emerick said he has a lot of mixed emotions about the request. He wants to see the request go through. He understands Ms. lams' and Mr. Margello's frustration with having people park in their lot. He feels like this location would have less of an impact on their lot than Jeni's does. It comes down to how far people are willing to walk. We do have a lot of under-utilized parkina spaces in the municipal lot and in private lots. We realize they are private lots. There is a lot of work which needs to be done on agreements with private lot owners to be able to utilize lots. We have another shopping center down the street which has very few cars in their lot. There is some missing analysis which needs to be done by the City on the collected data. The potential solution offered by Dr. Waddell is very hopeful. How soon do we think we could have something worked out with all of the parties involved? Mr. Betz said he can present a final report at the August 9th meeting. Mr. Waddell said he would like for all of the private property owners who already have parking in place, who are 10 yards away from this building, to embrace the concept of shared parking. It is so simple. He doesn't understand. Chairman Emerick said he agrees. As he has listened to his Commission members tonight, there needs to be a minimum of 4 yes votes for the request to pass. Right now there are 2 definite no's, 2 yes's and 2 unknowns. Mr. Sun asked what the Commission would like to see. He has tried to do everything asked of him. Chairman Emerick said we understand and appreciate this. It isn't what you have to do at this point as much as what other parties need to do. You indicated some willingness to work with Dr. Waddell. You said you would put the gravel down and come up with some type of agreement. This would go a long way towards alleviating some of the Commission's concerns. Commissioner Jester said we tabled the request for 60 days at the last meeting. The applicant was back here in 2 weeks. New information came to light tonight which we hadn't heard about. Do they still have the 60 days? Chairman Emerick said the request is before us tonight to take action on. We either need to table again, deny or approve. Mr. Betz said to Mr. Sun he is going to make the recommendation to wait 2 more weeks and try again. Mr. Sun asked what he will need to do. Mr. Betz said Staff needs to get more data pulled together and we can talk to some property owners, together. Mr. Sun said he would like to know exactly what he needs to do. He knows the Commission is looking for data but this wasn't the case before the meeting previously. We were asked to provide a parking agreement. We didn't know data was needed. If we would have known we would have waited and gotten more agreements in place. He is concerned. He doesn't want to come back and then have something else pop up and the delays keep happening. We started this in January. I need to know if I'm going to be able to move forward or not. We need to know what direction to take. Commissioner Little said he would offer his personal opinion; he thinks you have taken "x" amount of steps to swim through this situation. You are landlocked and limited to what you can do. You can still pursue additional parking agreements in addition to what you already have. You have a gentleman sitting across from you who is willing. Between now and 2 weeks you should work real hard with Mr. Waddell and Mr. Coolidge. I don't know if you have the ability to help the City, or maybe the City doesn't want help, to put all the gathered data into a format which is easy to analyze. The burden is on the community now to figure out if we can work out a solution. You have maxed out what you can do. We appreciate what you have done and you have a great concept. It is up to the town now. We have been kicking this can around for a long time. Mr. Betz said Staff will get their part done. Information will be in your packets the Friday prior to our meeting. Mr. Sun asked specifically, what type of agreement are you looking for? Commissioner Cooper said long-term to permanent parking. Chairman Emerick said any short-term agreements are going to give additional time to work on long-term agreements. He isn't confident there will be a long-term solution within 2 weeks. He would be looking for short-term parking agreements to allow us time to work on more permanent solutions. Chairman Emerick asked Commissioner Jester what would satisfy him. Commissioner Jester said he wants to hear from Mr. Waddell and Mr. Coolidge. He doesn't want them to go away. They should be at the next meeting. They should work with Staff and try and make what they put on the table happen. This would help things for him and he hopes this would help Mr. Margello too. You said you met with members of Council tonight. What is going to happen from that? Mr. Waddell said all this has happened after 7:00 p.m. tonight. He is frustrated. His daughter works for Mr. Margello. She has to park on public property so Local Roots can have the parking spaces. There is parking which already exists. Right next to the church is parking. The lot is already paved. You could get 15 cars in this lot. Why doesn't the City abate the taxes or maintain the property if the owner would lease out the spaces short-term or long-term. It would be easy. Commissioner Jester said he wants to see a plan, short-term or long-term. Mr. Waddell said he would participate in a short-term plan. Chairman Emerick said to answer Mr. Sun's question, everyone needs to work together; the City, adjacent property owners and you. Mr. Sun asked if he can get 10 or 15 parking spaces will he still have to pave and use his neighbor's lot. Or, would these spaces be in addition to using his neighbor's lot. Mr. Betz said we will figure this out. We will get a plan put together and come back in a couple weeks.

MOTION: Commissioner Little moved to re-table a request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the property located at 26 W. Olentangy Street as represented by Matthew Althouse, to allow renovations to an existing building for the purposes of a restaurant, and approve a parking plan for the proposal, to allow for resolution of the City's Parking Census data and any other parking arrangements which can be made with property owners in the area. Commissioner Cooper seconded the motion.

VOTE:

4

(Hartranft, Boysko)

## OTHER COMMISSION BUSINESS

No further business.

## **ADJOURNMENT**

MOTION: Chairman Emerick moved at 9:31 p.m. to adjourn the meeting. The Commission seconded the motion. By unanimous consent, the meeting was adjourned.

DATE MINUTES APPROVED: August 9, 2017

Donald Emerick

Chairman

Zoning Clerk